

Heritage Citation



Osbourne Hotel

Key details

Also known as	Fringe Bar
Addresses	At 766 Ann Street, Fortitude Valley, Queensland 4006
Type of place	Hotel (pub)
Period	Victorian 1860-1890
Style	Art Deco
Lot plan	L3_RP145995
Key dates	Local Heritage Place Since — 1 January 2011 Date of Citation — December 2008
Construction	Walls: Masonry

People/associations	G.H.M. Addison and Son - Additions (Architect); James Furnival (Architect)
Criterion for listing	(A) Historical; (B) Rarity; (D) Representative; (E) Aesthetic

The Osbourne Hotel was built in 1863 and was the second hotel to be built in Fortitude Valley. It was originally designed by Brisbane architect and engineer, James Furnival. The hotel had substantial renovations carried out to it in the 1920s, designed by successful Brisbane architectural firm G.H.M Addison and Son. Although the renovations changed the original external fabric of the building the 'art deco' design for the new frontage assured the hotel remained a focal point in the streetscape of Ann Street throughout the nineteenth, twentieth and twenty-first centuries.

History

Since the erection of the original building, the Osbourne Hotel has had numerous proprietors and has contributed to the sometimes colourful history of Fortitude Valley development.

The first sale of land in Fortitude Valley occurred in 1844. Nine suburban allotments of two and four acres each were offered at an upset price of £3 per acre. However the land at Kangaroo Point and in the centre of the settlement at north Brisbane was more sought after and when in 1846 the town limits of Brisbane were proclaimed, Fortitude Valley fell outside the limit.

By 1854 there were about 150 dwellings in the Fortitude Valley area, stretching as far as Breakfast Creek. In 1858 Wickham Street was surveyed from the corner of Ann Street to Boundary Street. At this stage very few commercial premises had been erected, and Valley residents relied on North Brisbane traders for supplies. Despite these difficulties the population was steadily growing. A government census in 1861 showed that there was a total population of over 1300 people in Fortitude Valley by that year.

Ann Osbourne, formerly Ann Campbell, first gained control of the site in 1862 following the death of her first husband John Campbell in 1860 and it was as a consequence of her second marriage in 1862 to a Brisbane innkeeper, Charles Osbourne, that the hotel was erected.

The Osbourne Hotel was originally built in 1863. The hotel was designed by Brisbane architect James Furnival. As an English emigrant, Furnival came to Brisbane in 1860 and practiced as an architect and civil engineer from 1861 to 1877. His achievements include the supervision of the construction of the second Brisbane Bridge after the collapse of the first temporary structure in 1867.

In August 1863 The Queensland Daily Guardian stated the Osbourne Hotel was being built by Mr. Teevan, the building was "a large two-storeyed public house". The hotel was opened in 1864 and was described in the Brisbane Courier as "a new brick and stone building...in Ann Street, Fortitude Valley... The house contains several fine rooms, and a licence has been obtained under the name of "Osbourne's Hotel". The article continued by stating that the building of the hotel reflected the progress occurring in the Fortitude Valley area during that period. The hotel was the second to be built in the Valley; the first was the Royal George Hotel on Brunswick Street. As Ann Street was the main thoroughfare between the centre of Brisbane and Breakfast Creek

to Eagle Farm areas it was a strategic place to establish a hotel.

The original hotel was a rendered brick building with two storeys and a first floor cantilevered verandah with cast iron balustrades.

Ann Osbourne was sole proprietor after her second husband's death in 1864 and the hotel's ownership was passed on through her family when her son from her first marriage, Colin Campbell, inherited the Osbourne following her death in November, 1868.

In 1907 the hotel was leased by successful Brisbane publicans John Edward Carroll and Charles Jackson Steward. Other hotels run by Carroll and Stewart (not always as partners) included the Criterion, the Waterloo, the Paddington, the Boundary and the Albion. Stewart used his skills as a caterer to improve the quality of available meals in the hotels and this in turn increased the number of guests. The partnership held the lease for two years and the improved Osbourne hotel then passed through a succession of leases.

In 1919 James O'Keefe, formerly an Irish farmer from Tipperary, together with Martin Scanlan leased the hotel. At this time Colin Campbell's daughter, Catherine Murrihy owned the property. The ownership of the hotel ceased to be part of the family business when Catherine Murrihy transferred the estate in full to James O'Keefe 1927.

The hotel was extensively renovated in the 1920s. The renovations were designed by successful Brisbane architects G.H.M Addison and Son. In March 1925 a tender notice was placed The Architects and Builders Journal of Queensland for alterations to the Osbourne Hotel. The accepted Tender was from Johnsson and Humphreys. G.H.M Addison had died in 1922, so it was likely his son, George Frederick, designed the additions to the Osbourne Hotel.

The renovations changed the character of the hotel by removing the verandahs, altering the fenestration, rebuilding the front corner to a rounded profile, and adding a parapet that concealed the original hipped roof. Although the additions altered the hotel's original fabric they added a new "art deco" style to the building that to this day contributes to the aesthetic streetscape of this part of Ann Street. Internally the hotel is no longer intact, particularly on the ground floor. Its external fabric is very important. The street frontage and return parapets, façade, fenestration, awning and glass block stairwell are all important elements in the building that contributes to the historic streetscape in this part of Fortitude Valley.

Description

This is a two-storey masonry hotel on the corner of Ann and Constance streets. It retains its original nineteenth century L-shape and has a roof made of corrugated iron sheeting. The front façade is designed with interwar Functionalist architectural features and has a series of interwar timber sash windows along both street frontages. A hung awning with pressed metal ceiling wraps around the front of the building. A corner balcony with steel balustrade sits above the awning. At the Constance Street side a verandah with steel balustrade is situated on the first floor. Beside this is a stairwell with Functionalist features including glass bricks. The interior of the hotel retains many interwar features, including staircase.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the Heritage planning scheme policy of the *Brisbane City Plan 2014*. It is significant because:

Historical

CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area's history

as the second hotel built in Fortitude Valley which demonstrates the emergent need for hotels in the 1860s in Brisbane due to increased development and population. The additions made to the hotel in the 1920s demonstrate the hotel's ongoing success as a licensed hotel. It is also important for its association with a boom period in the development of Fortitude Valley.

Rarity

CRITERION B

The place demonstrates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of the city's or local area's cultural heritage

as the second hotel built in the Fortitude Valley area it is a rare surviving early hotel in Brisbane.

Representative

CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural places

as a large corner hotel built in the 1860s. It was one of only four significant hotels that once contained extensive accommodation constructed on prominent sites in Fortitude Valley.

Aesthetic

CRITERION E

The place is important because of its aesthetic significance

for its contribution to the streetscape of Ann and Constance Streets.

References

- 1. Queensland Daily Guardian, dated August 18 1863
- 2. Brisbane City Council, Properties on the Web, website
- 3. Brisbane City Council, 1946 aerial photographs.
- 4. Brisbane City Council's Central Library, local history sheets
- 5. Department of Natural Resources, Queensland Certificates of title and other records.
- 6. John Oxley Library, Parish of Nundah, County of Stanley, L.A.D. of Brisbane map, (1899 land grant map).
- 7. John Oxley Library, Brisbane Suburbs Estate Maps
- 8. Queensland Government, *Queensland Pioneers Index 1829-1889*, (Brisbane: Department of Justice and Attorney General, 2000)
- 9. Queensland Post Office Directories, 1868-1949

Copyright Brisbane City Council

Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes

available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner, before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised September 2020)



Dedicated to a better Brisbane